CASSINE STATION, A CONDOMINIUM

EXHIBIT E TO DECLARATION

BYLAWS

CASSINE STATION OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

- 1. <u>Identity</u>. These are the Bylaws of Cassine Station Owners Association, Inc., called "Association" in lhese Bylaws, a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida. The Association has been organized for the purpose of administering a condominium pursuant to Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, called the Condominium Act in these Bylaws.
 - A. The office of the Association shall initially be c/o The Association Office, P.O. Box 1247, Santa Rosa Beach, FL 32459.
 - B. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.
 - C. The seal of the Association shall bear its name, the word, "Florida", the words, "corporation not for profit". and the year of its incorporation,

Memhen' Meetings.

- A. The annual members' meeting shall be held at a location detennined by the Board in Octobe_r, November or December of each year for the purpose of electing directors and transacting any otherbusmess authorized to be transacted by the members; provided, however, that if the day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next day that is not a holiday.
- B. Special members' meetings shall be held whenever called by the president and vice-president or bya majority of the board of directors, and must becalled by such officers upon receipt of a written request from members entitled to cast one-third of the votes of the entire membership. Special meetings for approval of assessments which exceed 115% of assessments for a prior year and for recall of a Board member may be called *as set* forth in Sections 718.112(2)(e) and (j), Florida Statutes, respectively.
- C. (I) Notice of aJl members' meetings stating the time and place and an identification of agenda items, shall be given by the president or vice-president or secretary unless waived in writing. Such notice shall be in Miting to each member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association and shall be mailed not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. Proof of such mailing shall be given by the affidavit of the person giving the notice. Notice of meeting may be waived before or after meetings, Adequate notice of members' meetings shall also be posted in a conspicuous place on the condominium property at least fourteen (14) continuous days preceding said meeting, except in emergency.
- (2) Notice of any meeting where assessments against unit owners are to be considered for any reason shall specifically contain the statement that theassessments will beconsidered and the nature of such assessments.
- D. A quorum at members' meetings shall consist ofpersons entitled tocast a majority of the votes of the entire membership. The acts approved by a majority of the votes present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the members, except when approval by a greater number of members is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

E. Voting.

- (1) In any meeting of members, owners of units shall be entitled to one vote for each Wlit owned in Cassine Station.
- (2) If a unit is owned by one person, his right to vote shall be established by the record title to his unit. If a unit is owned by more than one person, or is under lease, the person entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated bya certificate signed by all of the record owners of the unit and filed with the secretary of the Association. If a unit is owned bya corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by the president or vice-president and attested by the secretary of the corporation and filed with the secretary of the Association. Such certificates shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the unit concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of a unit may be revoked by any owner of a wiit. If such a certificate is not of file, the vote of such owners shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum nor for any other purpose.

- F. &2m. The use of limited and general proxies shall be penniUed as set forth by Flori.da law., Votes mabe c in per on or by proxy. Any proxy given shall be effective only for the specific meet 1 g for wh1c ongmally give and any lawful adjourned meeting thereof. In no event shall a pro y be valid for a penod longer than ninety (90) days after the date of the first meeting for which it was gwen. Every pro y shall be revocable at any time at the pleasure of the unit owner executing it. A proxy must be filed with the secretary before the appointed time of the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting for that proxy to be valid.
- G• Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of members cannot beorganized because a quoil; Im has no! attend d, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.
- The order of business at annual meetings and as far as practical at other members' H. meetings, shall be:
 - Collection of ballots.
 - Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
 - (2) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
 - Reports of officers.
 - Reports of commiUees.
 - Announcement of election of directors.
 - Unfinished business.
 - New business.
 - Adjournment.

3. Directors.

- A. Membership. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a board of directors of not less than three, nor more than five, directors, the exact number to be determined by the board of directors from time to time. All directors must have title to a m1it, or in the case of a unit owner of record that is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or other entity, the person to serve as a director must be an officer, director, partner, trustee or other authorized representative of the owning entity. The term of office for all directors elected at each annual meeting shall be two year tenns. At each annual meeting, elections shall be held to elect directors to replace those whose tenns have expired, with an odd nwnber of directors being elet:ted in odd years, and an even number of directors elected in even years. All directors shall continue in office after the expiration of their terms until the director's successor is duly elected and qualified, except in the event of earlier resignation, removal or disqualification.
 - Election of directors shall be conducted in the following manner:
 - Election of directors shall be held at the annual members' meeting.
- The election shall be by written ballot or voting machine. Proxies shall in no event beused in electing the board, either in general elections or elections to fill vacancies caused by recall. Not less than 60 days before scheduled election, the Association shall mail or deliver, whether by separate Association mailing or included in another Association mailing or delivery including regularly published newsleUers, to each unit owner entitled to vote, a first notice of the date of the election. Any unit owner desiring to be a candidate for the board shall give written notice to the secretary of the Association not less than 40 days before ascheduled election. Together with the written notice and agenda of the meeting, the Association shall then mail or deliver a second notice of the meeting to all unit owners entitled to vote therein, together with a ballot which shall list all candidates.
- Upon request of acandidate, the NIsociation shall include an infonnation sheet, no larger than δ , δ inches by JI inches furnished by the candidate, to be included with the mailing of the ballot, with the costs of mailing and copying to be borne by the Association. Elections shall be decided by a plurality of those ballots cast There shall be noquorum requirement; however, at least 20 percent of the eligible voters must cast a ballot inorder to have a valid election of members of the board.
- Except as to vacancies provided by removal of directors by members, vacancies in the board ofdirectors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining directors.
- Any director maybe removed by concurrence of a majority of the votes of the entire membership at a special meeting of the members called for that purpose. The vacancy in the board of directors so created shall be filled by the members of the Association at the same meetings.
- Provided, however, when unit owners other than thedeveloper own fifteen percent (I 5%) or more of the units within the condominium, the unit owners other than the developer shall be entitled to elect not less than one third (I/3) of the members of the board of directors of the Association. Unit owners other than the developer shall be entitled to elect not less than a majority of

the members of the board ofdirectors of the Association three (3) years aftersales by the developer have been closed on fifty percent (50%) of the units within this condominiwn, wilhin three (3) months after sales have been closed by the developer on ninety percent (90¾) of the units within the condominium, when all of the units within the condominium have been completed, some of them have been sold and none of the oth rs are being offered for sale by the developer in the ordinary course of business, when some of the units have been conveyed to purchasers and none oftbe others are being constructed or offered for sale by the developer in the ordinary course of business, or seven years after recordation of the declaration of condominium, whichever of the foregoing events shall first occur. The developer shall be entitled to elect at least one member of the board of directors of the Association as long as the developer holds for sale in the ordinary course of business at least five per cent (5%) of the units within the condominium. Within seventy five (75) days after the owners other than the developer aree11titled to elect a member or members of the board of directors of the Association, the Association shall call and give not less than sixty (60) days' notice ofan election for this purpose. The notice may be given by any owner if the Association fails to do so.

- C. The tenn of each director's service shall extend for two years until the annual meeting of the members at which his term expires and subsequently until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until he is removed in the manner elsewhere provided.
- D. The organizational meeting of the newly elected board of directors shall be held immediately following, and in the same location as, the meeting at which they were elected.
- E. Regular meetings of the board of directors may beheld at such time and place as shall be detem1ined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each director, personallyorby mail, telephone or telegraph, at least forty-eight hours prior to the day named for the meeting.
- F. Special meetings of the directors may be called by the president and must be called by the secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the directors. Not less than forty-eight (48) hours notice of the meeting shall be given personally, or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the ti.me, place and purpose of the meeting.
- G. <u>Notice of Meetings</u>. All meetings are open to all unit owners. Except in emergencies, notice shall be conspicuously posted at least forty eight (48) continuous hours prior to the meetings. Any meeting regarding assessments against unit owners shall specifically state said fact on this notice.
- H. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Any director may waive noticeofa meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.
- I. Qyru:ym. A quorum at a directors' meeting shall consist of a majority of theentire board of directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the board of directors, except when approval by a greater number of directors is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.
- J. <u>Adjourned Meetings</u>. If at any meeting oftheboardofdirectors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time w1til a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting, any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted.
- K. <u>Joinder in a Meeting by Approva of Minutes</u>. The)cinder of a direct?r in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes of that meeting shall not constitute the presence of such director for the purpose of detennining a quorum.
- L. The presiding officer of directors' meetings shall be the chairman of the board if such an officer has been elected; and if none, the president shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer, the directors present shall designate one of their numbers to preside.
 - M. The order ofbusiness at directors' meetings shall be:
 - (I) Calling of theroll.
 - (2) Proof of due notice of meeting.
 - (3) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
 - (4) Reports of officers and committees.
 - (5) Election of officers.
 - (6) Unfinished business.
 - (7) New business.
 - (8) Adjournment.
 - N. Directors' fees, if any, shall be determined by the members.

, 4: <u>0':'ers and Duties of the Board of Directors</u>. All of the powers and duties of the Association ex1stmg under the Condominium Act, Declaration of Condominium Articles of InC-Orporation and these Byl ws shall be exercised exclusively by the board of directors, its agents, contractor or mployees, subJect only to approval by unit owners when such is specifically required. In acc rdance with Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, the Association shall have a limited power to convey a portion of e common elem ts to a condemning authority for the purpose of providing utility easements, nght*of-way expansion, orother public purposes whether negotiated or as a result ofeminent domain proceedings.

5, Officers.

- A. The executive officers of the Association shall be a president, who shall be a director, a vice-president, who shall bea director, a treasurer and secretary, all of whom shall beelected annully by the board ofdirectors and who may be peremptorily removed by vote of the directors at any meeting. Any person may hold one or more offices except that the president shall not be also the secretary. The board of directors from time to time shall elect such other officers and designate their powers and duties as the board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association.
- B. The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties usually vested in *the* office of a president of an Association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the members, from time to time, as he, in his discretion may detennine appropriate, to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the corporation.
- C. The vice president in the absence or disability of the president, shall exercise the powers and perforn theduties of the president. He also shall assist the president generally and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the directors.
- D. Thesecretary shall keep the mlnutes of all proceedings of directors and members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and directors and other notices required by law. He shall have custody of the seal of the Association and affix it to instruments requiring a seal when duly signed. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the treasurer, and shall perforn all other duties incident to the office of secretary of an Association, and as maybe required by the director or the president.
- E. The treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities and evidences of indebtedness. He shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices; and he shall perform all other duties incident to the office of treasurer.
- 6.. <u>Fisca) Management.</u> The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration of Condominium and Articles of Incorporation shall be supplemented by the following provisions:
- A. The receipt and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be common expenses:
- B. Current expense, which shall include all receipts and expenditures within the year for which the budget is made including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds, except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements or tooperations. The balance in the fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for current expense for the succeeding year.
- (1) Reserve for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance, which shall include funds for maintenance items that occur less frequently than annually, including but not limited to roof replacement, building painting, and resurfacing of paved areas.
- (2) Reserve for replacement, which shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, depreciation or obsolescence.
- (3) Property improvements, which shall include the funds to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property that will be part of the common property.
- (4) Operations, which shall include the gross revenues from the use of the common property. Only the additional direct expense required by the revenue producing operation will be charged to this account, and any surplus from such operation shall *be* used to reduce the assessments for current expense in the year following the year in which the surplus is realized, Losses from such operations shall be met by special assessments against unit owners. which assessments may be made in advance in order to provide a working fund.

- C. The board of directors shall adopt a budget for each calendar year that shall include lhe esti_mated funds required to defray the common expense and to provide and maintain funds for the foregorng accounts and reserves according to good accounting practices. Copies of the budget and proposed assessments shall be transmitted to each member on or before December 20 preceding the year for which the budget is made. If the budget is amended substantially, a copy of the amended budget shall be furnished to each member.
- D. Assessments. Assessments against the unit owners for theirshares of the items of the budget shall be made for the calendar year annually in advance on or before December 20 preceding the year for which the assessments are made. Such assessments shall be due in quarterly or monthly installments, as maybe detemlined by the board of directors of the Association. In the event theannual assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget and assessments may be amended at any time by the board of directors.
- E. <u>Acceleration of Assessment Installments Upon Default</u>. If a unit owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon an assessment, the board of directors may accelerate the remaining installments of the assessment upon the filing of a lien.
- F. <u>Assessments for Emergencies</u>. A special assessment for common expenses for emergencies that cannot be paid from the annual assessments for common expenses due to the unavailability of funds shall be made only after notice to the unit owners of a regular or special Board meeting to address the need for such special assessment. After such notice and upon approval of the special assessment by a majority of the Board present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, the special assessment shall become effective, and it shall be dueafter thirty (30) days notice insuch manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of assessment.
- G. The depository of the Association shall be such bank or banks as shall be designated from time to time by the directors and in which the monies of the Association shall be deposited. Withdrawal of monies from such account shall only be by checks signed by such persons as are authorized by the directors.
- 7. <u>Parliamentary Rules</u>. "Roberts' Rules of Order" (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws.
 - 8. <u>Amendments.</u> These Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:
- A. Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.
- B. A resolution adopting a proposed amendment may be proposed by either the board of directors of the Association or by the members of the Association. Directors and members not present. in person or by proxy, at the meeting considering the amendment may express their approval in writing; providing such approval is delivered to the secretary at or prior to the meeting. Except as elsewhere provided, such approvals must be either by:
 - (I) Not less than 51% of the entire membership of the board of directors and by not Jess than 66-2/3% of the votes of the entire membership of the Association; or
 - (2) By not less than 66-2/3% of the votes of the entire membership of the Association; or
 - (3) Until the first election of directors, by all of the directors.
- A certificate of compliance from a licensed eloctrical contractor or electrician may be accepted by the board of directors as evidence of compliance of the wiits with the Condominium Fire and Life Safety Code.
- IO. As required by Florida law, the Association shall participate in mandatory nonbinding arbitration as provided for in Section 718.1255, Florida Statutes, as ii may be amended.
- 11. When a unit owner files a written inquiry by certified mail with the board of dir tors, the board shall respond in writing to the unit owner within 30 days of receipt of the inquiry, giving a substantive response, indicating that a legal opinion hasbeen requested or that advice has been requested from the State of Florida, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominium and Mobile Homes, and thereafter acting in accordance with the requirements of Section 718.112(2)(a)2, Florida Statutes.

I 2. <u>Limited Power to Convey Common Elements</u> . In accordance with Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, the association shall have a limited power to convey a portion of the common elements to a condemning authority for the purpose of providing utility easements, right-of way expansion, or other public purposes, whether negotiated or as a result of eminent domain proceedings.	
The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of Cassine Station Owners Association, Inc., a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida at the first meeting of the Board of Directors on thisday of	
Secretary Approved:	
President (SEAL)	

CASSINE STATION, A CONDOMINIUM

EXHIBIT F TO DECLARATION

RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 1. Vehicles may be parked only in the areas provided for that purpose. Passenger cars, vans, minivans and pick up trucks in operating condition only may utilize the parking facilities that *are* available for *use* by unit owners. No large trucks, boats and/or trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, travel trailers. campers, or any other vehicles may use parking facilities without prior written approval of the Board of Directors or its designee, except that commercial vehicles whose occupant8 are providing services to the Association or to any unit owner may use theparking spaces designated by the Board of Directors, Owners and their visitors and guests shall not interfere with the use of any assigned parking space by its rightful owner. Parking regulations may be adopted by the Board addressing the removal of vehicles violating such regulations and fines for improper parking. No vehicular orother maintenance or repair shall beperfornled on condominium property or in any parking facilities that areavailable for use by unit owners, except for emergency repairs to either start or tow a vehicle and remove it from the premises.
- 2. Use of the general common elementl: I will be in such manner as to respect the rights of other unit owners.
- 3. No radio or television antenna or satellite dish or any wiring for any purpose shall be installed on the exterior of a building without the written consent of the Association.
- 4. Any owner may identify his with with aname plate of a type and size approved by the Association and mounted in a place and manner approved by the Association. Noother signs may be displayed except signs of the developer pending construction and sale of the condominium units.
- 5. The balconies and exterior stairways shall be used only for thepurposes intended, and shall not be used for hanging gannenls or other objects, or for cleaning of rugs and other household items, except that a unit owner may display one portable, removable United States flag in a respectful way, and may display in a respectful way other portable, removable official flags as pennitted by Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time(the Florida Condominium Act).
- 6. Unit owners are reminded that alteration and repair of the building is the responsibility of the Association except for the interior of units. No work of any kind is to be done upon exterior building walls, the balconies or upon interior boundary walls without first obtaining the approval required by the Declaration of Condominium.
- Common household pets weighing less than forty (40) pounds are pem1itted to be kept by unit owners (and shall nQl be kept byguests or tenants), but shall be limited in nwnber to two per unit and shall not create an annoyance to other unit owners. For the purpose of this subparagraph, wtit owner shall be defined as an individual owner of an undivided interest in a condominium unit, and shall not include a corporate unit owners. The Board of Directors may approve the keeping of pets weighing in excess of forty (40) pounds, in its sole and arbitrary discretion. All pets must be held, or kept leashed and under the control of a responsible party at all times that they are in the common clements. All owners of pets shall be held strictly responsible to immediately collect and properly dispose of the wastes and liuer oftheirpets. Should a unit owner fail to clean up after his pet, the Association shall perfonn that service and bill the unit owner accordingly, with a minimum charge of \$25.00 for such service. The charge may be increased by vote of I.he Board of Directors. The Association reserves the right todesignate specific areas within the common elements, if any, where pets may be walked on leashes by their owners. The Association further reserves the right to adopt and enforce additional pet regulations necessary to ensure that pets are not and do not become a nuisance, and demand that a member permanently remove any and all pets which create disturbances and annoyances from the condominium property.
- 8. No owner may make or permit any disturbing noises in the building whether made by himself, his family, friends or servants, nor do or permit anything to be done by such persons that will interfere with the rights, comforts or convenience of other tenants. No owner may play or suffer to be played musical instruments, phonographs, radios or television sets in his unit between the hours of 11:00 P.M. and the following 7:00 A.M. if the same shall disturb or annoy other occupants of *the* condominium. Reasonable commercial and business activities, including but not limited to retail

Sale of goods and services, retail sales, restaurant and food preparation and services, lodging services, management and rental services, and offices, in the Commercial Units on the ground floor of the building, shall not be deemed to be aviolation of this provision; however, hours of operation during which customers shall patronize businesses located in the Commercial Units shall be limited from 6 a.m. Central Time, to 2 am. Central Time. Revision to this section shall require the unanimous consent of the owners of Commercial Unit A, Commercial Unit B, Commercial Unit C, and Commercial Unit D.

- 9. The condominium parcels on the ground floor designated as Commercial Unit A, Commercial Unit B, Commercial Unit C, and Commercial Unit D shall be used for commercial and business purposes, including but not limited to retail sale of goods and services, retails sales, restaurant and food preparation and services, lodging services, management and rental services, and offices. Each condominium parcel located on a living level above the ground floor is a residential unit restricted to residential use only by the owner thereof, his immediate family, guests, invitees or lessees. Residential units may be rented or leased subject to the provisions of this Declaration.
- J 0. The passenger elevator is for the use of unit owners and theirguests and tenants. Care should be taken not to mar the finishes of an elevator car with large or bulky items. It is recommended that elevator use be avoided during stonns as most power failures occur at that time, but in the event of failure, the elevator will be stopped only temporarily until the emergency power supply becomes available. Help may be called by sounding the alann in each car or by using the emergency telephone provided in each car.
- 11. All waste is to be disposed of in kitchen garbage disposal units, via the trash chute access panel on each floor or in the trash dumpster. No waste, especially including but not limited to cigars and cigarettes is to be disposed of at any time from balconies or windows.
- 12. This area is subject to sudden rainstorms without warning. In order to avoid water damage to units and other parts of the building, unit owners, their owners and guests are required to close all windows and doors exposed to the weather when there are no occupants in the unit.
- 13. Security systems installed in units shall be those with silent alarms, to avoid disturbances to other occupants of the building.
- 14. No gas or electric barbeque grills will be pennitted on the condominium property unless they are contained in an area that may be designated by the Board of Directors; no grills may be used on balconies, walkways or in any unit.

RULE CHANGES

15. The Association reserves the right to change, amend, delete and/or waive any of the rules set forth herein.

PROCEDURE FOR FINES

- 16. The party against whom the fme is sought to be levied shall be afforded an opportunity for hearing after reasonable notice of not less than fourteen (14) days and said notice shall include:
 - (a) A statement of the date, time and place of the hearing;
 - (b) A statement of the provisions of the Declaration, Bylaws, or rules which have allegedly been violated; and
 - (c) A short and plain statement of the matters asserted by the Association.

The hearing must be held before a committee of other unit owners. If the committee does not agree with the fine, the fine may not be levied.

17. The party against whom the fine may be levied shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence, and to provide written and oral argument on all issues involved and shall have an opportunity at the hearing to review, challenge, and respond to any material considered by the Association.

F:\Documents\Carr H\Cassinc Station Project\Recorde.d Declaration 03.23.06.doc